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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SERVICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271 -4501 1 -800-852-3345 Ext. 4501

Fax:603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

September 10, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
exercise a renewal option and amend and exisiting agreement with Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS
Task Force, (Vendor # 156984 B001), 77 Northeastern Boulevard, Nashua, NH, 03062 to continue
providing Medical Case Management, Support Services and Insurance Benefit Management Services to
New Hampshire residents living with HIV/AIDS by increasing the price limitation by $478,250 from
$2,046,747 to $2,524,997 and by extending the completion date from October 31, 2019 to June 30, 2020,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% Other Funds, Pharmaceutical Rebates

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 15, 2016
(Item #11A), and subsequently amended on June 19, 2019 (Item #75).

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for State
Fiscal Year 2020 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget,
with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between state fiscal
years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902510-22290000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL,
PHARMACEUTICAL REBATES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

(Modified)
Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $599,999 $0 $599,999

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $599,999 $0 $599,999

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $599,999 $0 $599,999

;2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $246,750 $478,250 $725,000

1 ■

Total $2,046,747 $478,250 $2,524,997
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EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the Contractor is the only vendor in New Hampshire who
provides medical case management through a network of agencies that serve individuals who have
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) and who are enrolled in the NH Ryan White CARE program.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing medical case management, support services,
and insurance benefit management services to individuals with HIV in New Hampshire.

Approximately 615 individuals will be served from November 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020.

The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-1 that allows the Department to renew
the contract for up to three (3) years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory
performance of services, parties' written authorization and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council. The Department has utilized four (4) months of the available three (3) years. The Department
is in' agreement with renewing services for eight (8) months at this time, leaving two (2) years of renewal
option remaining.

The Contractor will ensure NH residents living vyith HIV have access to Case Management and
Support Services, which includes enrollment in the NH Ryan White CARE Program. Additionally, the
Contractor will continue providing insurance benefits management services.

The Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force has met or exceeded its performance
measures, and health outcome measures, such as HIV Viral Suppression, have improved.

This amendment will benefit the Department and residents of the State of New Hampshire by
limiting the spread of new infection and improving health outcomes for individuals living with HIV.

The Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force's effectiveness in delivering services will
continue to be measured through monitoring of the following performance measures:

•  100% of chart reviews result in zero (0) citations for assessment and service planning
standards.

•  100% of citations for assessment and service planning will have a corrective action plan
developed and approved by the NH CARE Program within thirty (30) days of receipt of
site visit report.

•  100% of medical case management agencies will have an approved quality management
plan.

•  90% of initial (binding) premium payments will be made within five (5) business days or
receipt of payment invoice.

'  ' • 90% of ongoing monthly premium checks shall be made by the twenty-fifth (25''^) day of
the month prior to the due date.

•  90% of medical copays and deductibles will have a check issued within fifteen (15)
'  business days of receipt of documentation for payrhent.

The Agreement includes requirements for the Contractor to submit ongoing financial reports.
Financial reports will include program-level and organization-level profit and loss statements, cash
eqiivalents, liabilities and assets, and new lending. The Department will review these reports and
discuss any concerns with the Contractor on an ongoing basis, which is expected to lead to close
monitoring of fiscal integrity.
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'  Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, NH Ryan White CARE
Program participants will lack support to enroll and remain active in the NH Ryan White CARE Program,
which provides access to pharmaceutical coverage, health insurance premium assistance, primary
medical care services, dental services, and mental health and substance use disorder services. Non-

involvement will subsequently cause a significant proportion of clients to disengage from medical
care and life sustaining antiretroviral therapy.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: 100 % Pharmaceutical Rebates.
I

:  In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

ectfully submitted.Re

ey A. Meyers
missioner

77te Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and Insurance
Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Medical Case Management, Support Services,
and Insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

This 2"^ Amendment to the Medical Case Management, Support Services, and Insurance Benefit
Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #2") Is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS
Task Force, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a corporation with a place of business at 77
Northeastern Boulevard, Nashua, NH, 03062.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 15, 2016, (Item #11 A), and as amended on June 19, 2019, (Item #75) the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 3, the State may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and
approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, and increase the price limitation, to
support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #3 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2020.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,524,997.

3. Exhibit A-1, Amendment #1, to add Section 9, Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity to read:
j

9. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

9.1. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the Contractor agrees
to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement (total
organization and program-level), and Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor. Program-

I  level Profit and Loss Statement shall include all revenue sources and all related
I  expenditures for that program. The program-level Profit and Loss Statement shall include a

budget column allowing for budget to actual analysis. Outsidp'Of the program-level Profit
I  and Loss Statement and budget to actual analysis, all other statements shall be reflective of
'  the entire Partnership for Successful Living organization and shall be submitted on the same

day the reports are submitted to the Board, but no later than the fourth Wednesday of the
month. Additionally, the contractor will provide interim profit and loss statement^p/ every

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

SS-2017-DPHS-06-MEDiC-01 Page 1 of 6 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and Insurance
Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

program area, reported as of the 20th of the month, by the last day of every month. The
Contractor will be evaluated on the following:

9.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

9.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be covered by the
unrestricted cash on hand.

9.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments divided by
total operating expenditures, less depreciation/amortization and in-kind
plus principal payments on debt divided by days in the reporting period.
The short-term investments as used above must mature within three (3)
months and should not include common stock. Any amount of cash from
a line of credit should be broken out separately.

9.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough cash and
cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a minimum of thirty (30)
calendar days with no variance allowed.

9.1.2. Current Ratio:

9.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current assets available

^  to cover the cost of current liabilities.

9.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current liabilities.

9.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum

current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

9.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

9.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to cover the cost
of its current portion of its long-term debt.

9.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt service.

9.1.3.3. Formula: Net income plus Depreciation/Amortization Expense plus
Interest Expense divided by year to date debt service (principal and
interest) over the next twelve (12) months.

9.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements
identifying current portion of long-term debt payments (principal and
interest).

9.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum

standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

9.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:

9.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's ability to cover
its liabilities.

9.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total assets.

9.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) divided by total
assets.

9.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements.

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force Amendment #2 Contractor Initials . .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and Insurance
Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

9.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum ratio

of .30:1, with a 20% variance allowed.

9.1.5. Total Lines of Credit

9.1.5.1. The contractor will provide a listing of every line of credit and amount
outstanding for each line.

9.1.5.2. The contractor will report on any new borrowing activities.

9.1.5.3. The contractor will report on any instances of non-compliance with any
loan covenant or agreement.

9.2. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

9.2.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard regarding
Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

9.2.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity standards for three
(3) consecutive months, or

9.2.3. Does not meet the reporting timeframe, then

9.3. The Department may:

9.3.1. Require that the Contractor meet with Department staff to explain the reasons that
the Contractor has not met the standards.

9.3.2. Require the Contractor to submit a comprehensive corrective action plan within
thirty (30) calendar days of notification that 9.2.1 and/or 9.2.2 have not been met

9.3.3. Terminate the contract.

9.3.3.1. If a corrective action plan is required, the Contractor shall update the
corrective action plan at least every thirty (30) calendar days until
compliance is achieved.

9.3.3.2. The Contractor shall provide additional information to assure continued
access to services as requested by the Department. The Contractor
shall provide requested information in a timeframe agreed upon by both
parties.

9.4. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within twenty-four (24)
hours of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or likely litigation, investigation,
complaint, claim, or transaction that may reasonably be considered to have a material
financial impact on and/or materially impact or impair the ability of the Contractor to perform
under this Agreement with the Department.

9.5. The monthly Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Statement, Cash Flow Statement, and all other
financial reports shall be based on the accrual method of accounting and include the
Contractor's total revenues and expenditures whether or not generated by or resulting from
funds provided pursuant to this Agreement.

9.6. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within five business days
when any Executive Management, Board Officers, or Program Managers for DHHS
contracts submits a resignation or leaves for any other reason.

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and Insurance
Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

4. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Paragraph 4. to read:

4. Payment for contracted services in Exhibit A will be made on a cost reimbursement only, for
allowable expenses based on budgets identified in Exhibits B-1 through Exhibit B-4 (SPY
2020). Amendment #2 Budget form. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the
Department in accordance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations.

5. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Paragraph 6, to read:

6 Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the P-37, an amendment limited to Exhibits B-1 through Exhibit
B-4 (SPY 2020) Amendment #2 Budget Porm to adjust line item amounts within the budgets
within the price limitation, can be made by written agreement of both parties.

6. Delete Exhibit B-4 {SPY 2020) Budget Porm in Its entirety and replace with Exhibit B-4 (SPY 2020),
Amendment #2, Budget Porm.

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force Amendment #2 Contractor Initials ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and Insurance
Benefit Management for Clients with Human immunodeficiency Virus

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

'^kli9
Date Name: Lisa Morris

Title: Director

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force

Date

A
Narne:

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of County of_[ ̂ ,  u I on before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the persojijiJentified dirSctiy above", br'satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

itary Public or Justice of the PeaceSignature of

Name and Titl^ of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and insurance
Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Name: / )
Title: LV

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIOS Task Force Amendment #2 Contractor Initials. ^ . .
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Exhibit B-4, Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AJDS

Bidder/Contractor Name: Task Force

Medical Case Management, Support

Services, and Insurance Benefit

Management for Clients with Human

Budget Request for: Immunodeficiency Virus
(Name of Program)

Budget Period: July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020

Direct Indirect Total >Mlocation Method for

Line Item ' Incremental Fixed Indirect/Fixed Cost

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 106,065 $ 10,607 $ 116,672

2. Employee Benefits $ 26,767 $ 2,677 $ 29,444

3. Consultants $ 13,195 $ 1,319 $ 14,514

4. Equipment: $ - $ - $ -

, Rental $ - $ - $ -

Repair and Maintenance $ 10,271 $ 1,027 $ 11,298

Purchase/Depreciation $ 1,999 $ 200 $ 2,199

5. Supplies: $ - $ - $ -

Educational $ $ $

Lab $ $ $

Pharmacy $ $ $

.Medical $ - $ - $ -

Office $ 5,498 $ 550 $ 6,048

6. Travel $ 5,998 $ 600 $ 6,597
Method A-Total program

cost/Total cost for all

programs-Ceiling rate

set at 10% per RFP

7. Occupancy $ 26,989 $ 2,699 $ 29,688

8. Current Expenses $ - $ - $ -

Telephone $ 4,998 $ 500 $ 5,498

Postage $ 2,999 $ 300 $ 3,299

Subscriptions $ - $ - $ -

: Audit and Legal $ 3,599 $ 360 $ 3,958

Insurance $ 2,999 $ 300 $ 3.299

Board Expenses $ 100 $ 10 $ 110

9. Software $ - $ $ -

10. Marketing and Communications $ - $ - $ -

11. Staff Education and Training $ 1,999 $ 200 $ 2,199

12. Subcontracts $ 424,192 $ 42,454 $ 466,646

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ - $ -

' Food and Nutrition $ 14,994 $ 1,499 $ 16,493

Medical Transportation $ 3,998 $ 400 $ 4,398

Linguistic Sen/ices $ 400 $ 40 $ 440

Housing $ 1,999 $ 200 $ 2,199

$ $ -

$

$ -

TOTAL $ 659,059 $ 65,941 $ 725,000



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

;1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHERN NEW

HAMPSHIRE HIV/AJDS TASK FORCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on March 12, 1991.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 154858

Certificate Number 0004516976

SI Qfi
A'

9^

>
uu

o

A

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto sot my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 17th day of May A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, do hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Office^f the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of /U// ^/CC.
(Aoencv Name) 1(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on :
'(Date)

Cf/9-RESOLVED: That the

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the lij^ day of . 2oJ^.
(Date Amendnent Signed)Signed)

4. /er- is the duly elected
(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of /Tf//^/y>rC

'Pres/cfeni/- h'
(Title of Contraol Signatory)

y

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this
4i

day

'C
(Name of Elected Officer^f the Agency)

of th 3 elected Officer)

of.^jtiy2ojy_,

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires: h

(Notary Publi of he Peace)tice

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau pf Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1.2005
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CERTIFICATE HOLDER

OHHS. Stats Of NH
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

CANCELLATION

SHOULD AMY OP TMH ASOVB DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLEO BBPORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED M
ACCORDANCE WfTH THE POUCV PROVISIONS.

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

AUTMORSEO REPRSSCNTATTVE

e 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name end logo are registered merka of ACORD



The Southern N.H. MJ (603) 595-8464
HIV/AIDS Task Force MF (800) 942-7437
12 Amherst Street TACI/ FORPF 595-1480
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Mission Statement

The mission of the Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force is to increase the quality and
availability of knowledge, services and resources in all matters relating to HIV infection and AIDS to
the people in the Southem New Hampshire region, regardless of race, religion, ethnicity, disability,
gender, age, or sexual orientation.

Peter Kelleher President and CEO

Board of Directors

Edward B. Hall Jr. (Ted) Chair Thomas I. Arrwid Vice-Chair David Aponovlch Treasurer Joel Jaffe Secretary
Sr. Lorrair>e Arsenault, p.m. Robert Fischer Alphonse HaetenschwiUer Betty Hall Nicole Harrington Fr. Richard Kelly Robert Kelliher

Michael Kirby Naomi Moody Patrice O'Donnell Pamela O'Neil Trent Smith Paul Thibodeau Lynne Weilhrauch Betty J. Winberg



SOUTHERN NH HIV/AIDS TASK FORCE

Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(With independent Auditors' Report Thereon)
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Melanson
ACCOUNTANTS • AUOITOIIS I

Heath

102 Perimeter Road

Nashua, NH 03063

(603)882-1111
melansonheath.com

Additional Offices:

Andover. MA

Crcenrield, MA

Manchester, NH

eilsworth. ME

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Southern NH HIV/AIDS
Task Force, (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, in making those risk assess
ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in orcjer to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force as of
June 30, 2018, and the changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

November 7, 2018



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE HIV/AIDS TASK FORCE

Statement of Financtal Position

June 30.2018

ASSETS

CurrentAssets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Due from related organization
Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Property and equipment, net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities;

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related expenses
Total Current Liabilities

Unrestricted Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

S  95,156

152,267

80,153

750

328,326

6,536

S  334,862

$  76,983

27,289

104,272

230,590

$  334,862

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Anancial statements.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE H[V/A(DS TASK FORCE

Statement of AcUvities

For the Year Ended June 30,2018

Support and Revenue:

State and local grants

Federal grants

Contributions

Program service fees

Income from special events, net

Interest income

Other

Total Support and Revenue

Expenses:

Program

General and administrative

Fundratsing
/

Total Expenses

Change in net assets

Unrestricted Net Assets. Beginning of Year

Unrestricted Net Assets, End of Year

1,547,241

589,171

33,884

36,186

9,758

162

1,656

2,218,058

2,050,379

149,252

7,669

2,207,300

10,758

219,832

%  230,590

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE HIV/AIOS TASK FORCE

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30.2016

Proa ram

General and

Administrative Fundraisina Total

Accounting fees $ $  7,712 $ $  7,712

Advertising and marketing 632 15 - 647

Client counseling and support services 21.373 - - 21,373

Client insurance assistance 923,931 - - 923,931

Client rental assistance 75.298 - - 75,298

Conferences .  . .  112 - 112

Depreciation - 503 - 503

Employee benefits 61,674 28,289 630 90.593

Food and nutrition services 12,802 - - 12,802

Grants and donations to other organizations 494,590 10,975 - 505,565

Information technology 6,095 428 - 6,523

Insurance 3,973 191 19 4,183

MisceDaneous 622 41 - 663

Occupancy 36,875 36,177 • 73,052

Office expenses 18,890 175 - 19,065

Payroll taxes 26,659 6.740 514 33,913

Professional foes 13,706 554 - 14,260

Salaries and wages 340,639 55,718 6,506 402,863

Travel 12,620 1,622 - 14,242

Total Functional Expenses $ 2,050,379 $ 149,252 $ 7,669 $ 2,207,300

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE HiV/AlDS TASK FORCE

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30,2018

Cash Flows From Operating Activities;

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation

Decrease (Increase) In:

Accounts receivable

(Decrease) Increase In:

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Receipts from related organization

Payments to related oipanization

Net Cash Used By Financing Activities

Net Increase

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

$  . 10.758

503

74,579

(4.085)

■  3,611

85,366

183,345

(251,802)

(68,457)

16,909

78,247

$  95,156

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.



SOUTHERN NH HIV/AIDS TASK FORCE

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Organization:

The Southern NH HiV/AIDS Task Force (the Task Force) was founded in
1991 to provide educational case management, mental health and alterna
tive therapy assistance, housing assistance, food and nutritional guidance,
substance abuse counseling, and other related support services to people in
the Southern New Hampshire region infected with the HIV/AIDS virus.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three
months or less, and whictt are neither held for nor restricted by donors for
long-term purposes, are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Receivables

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for
services and programs. The allowance for uncollectabte accounts receivable
is based on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and
a review of subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when
deemed uncoilectabie.

Property and Equipment and Depreciation

Property and equipment is reported in the Statement of Financial Position'at
cost, if purchased, and at fair value at the date of donation, if donated.
Property and equipment is capitalized if it has a cost of $2,500 or more and a
useful life when acquired of more than one year. Repairs and maintenance
that do not significantly increase the useful life of the asset are expensed as
incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Building improvements 5 years
Fumrture and fixtures 5-7 years
Equipment 5 years

Property and equipment is reviewed for impairment when a significant change
in the asset's use or another indicator of possible impairment is present. No
impairment losses were recognized in the financial statements in the current
period.



Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets available for use in general
operations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor
restrictions that may or will be met by expenditures or actions and/or
the passage of time. Contributions that are restricted by donors are
reported as inaeases in unrestricted net assets If the restrictions expire
(that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recog
nized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases
in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets, depending on the
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted
net assets are reclassified to. unrestricted net. assets and reported in
the Statement of Activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets whose use is limited
by donor-imposed restrictions that neither expire by the passage of
time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed.

The Task Force has only unrestricted net assets.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue Is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments
under cost-reimbursable contracts received in advance are deferred to the

applicable period in which the related services are performed or expenditures
are incurred, respectively.

Accounting for Contributions

Contributions are recognized when received. All contributions ace reported as-
increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the contributed assets is

specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by
the donor to use in future periods or for specific purposes are reported as
increases in either temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets,
consistent with the nature of the restriction. Unconditional promises with
payments due in future years have an implied restriction to l:>e used in the
year the payment is due and. therefore, are reported as temporarily restricted
until the payment is due unless the contribution is clearly intended to support
activities of the current fiscal year or is received with permanent restrictions.
Conditional promises, such as matching grants, are not recognized until they
become unconditional, that is, until all conditions on which they depend are
substantially met.
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GiftS'ln^Kind Contributions

The Task Force periodically receives contributions in a form other than cash
or investments. Contributed property and equipment is recognized as an
asset at its estimated fair value at the date of ghft, provided that the value of
the asset and its estimated useful life meets the Task Force's capitalization
policy. Donated use of facilities is reported as contributions and as expenses
at the estimated fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If
the use of the space is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one
year, the contribution is reported as a contribution and an unconditional
promise to give at the date of gift, and the expense is reported over the term
of use. Donated supplies are recorded as contributions at the date of gift and
as expenses when the donated Kerns are placed into service or distributed.

The Task Force benefits from personal services provided by a substantial
number of volunteers. Those volunteers have donated significant amounts of
time and services in the Task Force's program operations and in Ks fund-
raising campaigns. However, the majority of the contributed services do not
meet the crKeria for recognition in financial statements. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed services only if {a) the
services create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (6) the sen/ices would have
been purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and
are provided by individuals possessing those skills.

Grant Revenue

Grant revenue is recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred for cost-
reimbursement grants or contracts or when a unK of service is provided for
performance grants. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to inde
pendent audit under the Office of Management and Budget's, Uniform Grant
Guidance, and review by grantor agencies. The review could result in the
disallowance of expenditures under the tenns of the grant or reductions of
future grant funds. Based on prior experience, the Task Force's management
believes that costs ultimately disallowed, K any, would not materially affect the
financial position of the Task Force.

Functional Attocation of Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and activKies have been summa
rized on a functional basis in the Statement of ActivKies. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting sen/ices
benefited.



income Taxes

Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force has been recognized by the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from federal income taxes under Internal
Revenue Code (IRC) 501(a) as an organization described in IRC Section
501(c)(3), qualiftes for charitable contribution deductions, and has been
determined not to be a private foundation. The Task Force is annually
required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990)
with the IRS. In addition, the Task Force is subject to income tax on net
income that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt
purpose. In fiscal year 2018. the Task Force was not subject to unrelated
business income tax and did not file and Exempt Organization Business
Income Tax Return (form 990-T) with the IRS.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles requires estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabjlities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly
actual results may differ from those estimates.

Financiai instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institu
tions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed
insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these
accounts. Credit risk associated with accounts and contributions receivable is

considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates.

Fair Vatue Measurements and Disciosures

Certain liabilities are reported at fair value in the financial statements. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous,
market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability,
including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable.
Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions rnarket participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs
that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions
market participants would use. in pricing the asset or liability based on the
best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as
follows:
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Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are obsen/able for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in
markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
obsen/able for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these
situations, inputs are developed using the best information available in
the circumstances.

When available, the Task Force measures fair value using Level 1 inputs
because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value.
However, Level 1 inputs are not available for many of the assets and liabilities
that the Task Force is required to measure at fair value (for example,
unconditional contributions receivable and in-kind contributions).

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Task Force's financial
statements are;

•  initial measurement of noncash gifts, including gifts of investnnent assets
and unconditional contributions receivable.

•  recurring measurement of due from related organization - Level 3.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, and accrued payroll and related expenses approximate fair
value due to the short-term nature of the items.

3. Due from Related Organization:

"Due from related organization" represents the net amount due from the
Harbor Homes organizations, whi^'are related entities (see Note 9).

As discussed in Note 2, the valuation technique used for valuing due from
related organization is a Level 3 measure because there are no observable
market transactions. Changes in fair value on a recurring basis using
significant unobservable inputs are as follows:

Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 11,696
Receipts 251,802
Payments (183,345)

Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 80,153

11



4. Property. Equipment, and Depreciation:

A summary of the major components of property and equipment is presented
below-

Building improvements $ 7,542
Furniture and fixtures 11,229

Equipment 46.104

Subtotal 64,875

Less: accumulated depreciation (58,339)

Total

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 totaled $503.

5. Net Assets Released from Restriction:

There were no restricted net assets during the year ended June 30, 2018,.
and as a result, ho net assets were released from restriction.

6. Operating Leases:

During fiscal year 2018, the Task Force leased Its office facilities from Harbor
Homes, Inc., a related entity (see Note 9). Monthly rents required under this
lease, expiring December 31. 2018, were $5,376.

The Task Force leased additional office facilities under an agreement that
expired on June 30, 2018. Rent expense under this agreement totaled $7,200
for the year ended June 30, 2018.

7. Deferred Compensation Plan:

The Organization maintains a 401 (k) retirement plan. Upon meeting the eligibility
criteria, employees can contribute a portion of their wages to the plan. The
Organization will contribute as a matching contribution an amount equal to 100%
of employees' contributions that is not in excess of 6% of their contribution.
Additional discretionary matching contributions are also permitted. Total match
ing contributions paid by the Organization for the year ended June 30, 2018
were $23,058.

8. Concentration of Risk:

The Task Force receives approximately 88% of its revenue from the State of
New Hampshire, 21% under the Ryan White grant, and 12% under the HOPWA
grant.

12



Related Entities:

As a commonly controlled organization by way of its common board of
directors and management, the Task Force is included in the consolidated
financial statements of Harbor Homes, Inc. The Task Force also has a
contract to receive general maintenance and landscaping services, when
needed, performed by clients and staff from Harbor Homes, Inc.

10. Subsequent Events:

In accordance with the provisions set forth by FASB ASC, Subsequent
Events, events and transactions from July 1, 2018 through November/,
2018, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, have
been evaluated by management for disclosure. Management has determined
that there were no material events that would require disclosure in the Task
Force's financial statements through this date.

13
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Laurie DesRochers

Phil Duhaime

Lynn King

Ed McDonough
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PETER J. KEIXEHER. CC8W, UCSW
4} High Strut

Nuhu«»NH 0J060
Telephone: (603)112.3616
Vvc (603)595.7414
E.fn*il: pJi»l(efaei^htrboihome«.ors

PROFESSIONAL pCPERlENCE

30D6.?m8al Fruldcat A CEO» Southers-NH HIV Task Force
3002.Prcseai Pmldeot A CCO»ONCA,lDe.NMh'ae,NH
l99.7'Pr«s«8t Pmldeat A CEO, Hnlthy At Hose.Iec., Neshee.NH
•)995.Pft»cat'. Proidcni A CEO. Mltford RegtooeS Cottiucling Sorvka. lee^ Mllford, NH
19t5.Pm«nl' ProMeat.ACBO.Wclcoml&lUshl, loc:,Ntshee.NH
l982*Pmtat PrcfMcat A CEO, Harbor Horou.lDe.iNuhot*'^

Currcnlly employed M chief executive officer for nonprofh corporetion (end ifniieus) providing
rcsideotkl. supported employment, end soeiel club cervices for perscM wlih fong^erm mehul illness
vtdfor homeleu. Responsible for initiation, deveiopment, end overaight of 33 progreme comprising •
510,000,000 opereting budget; proposal development resuhing In more then 000.000 in grants eiinualty;
ovcraighi of 330 mane'gement end direet cere proretsionels.

.  2005-2006 Consttiteot . -rr."-- ,v—
Providing consultetiori end technicel essUience throughout (he Stem to eM.urvlce and mental health
organiimions

1980 • 1983 Real Estate Broker, LeVeus Realty, Cambridge, MA
Successful sales and property management tpccialisi.

1979.1980 Clinical Coordlnntor, Task Oriented CommoDttles, Wahham, MA
Esiabllshcd and provided comprehefuive rehabilltarion services to approximately 70 mOTtally 111/ mentally
retarded clients. Hired, directly supervised, aiid trained a fulWiime stiff of 20 residential coprdmatort.
Devplopod community residcr>ces for the above clknu in three Boston suburbs. Provided emergerKy
eonsuhailon on a 24.|wr basis to sufTdealing with crisis manigemsot in six group homes and one
sheltered workshop. Adminbtrailve responsibilities Ukhided some rmancial management, quality
assurance; ind other eccoumability to srate authorises.

1978-1979 FocBlty,MlddlcsesCommanltyCollege,Bedrord,MA
htstrvctor for en introductory group psychodtertpy course offered through the Sulal Work Dtpanmeni.

1977 • 1979 Seaigr Social Worker/Astlsiaat Director, Mamchusettt Tubcreulqsb Treatment Center U, a unit of
I  MlddlutiCountyHOspilal, Waltbam, MA

Functioned u second In command end chief clinical supervisor for cicht InierdiscipUnary team members._
aiva UnplmeafeaTiix^mth'residM^ program for mdtviduala afBicted with recurring tuberculosis end
alcoholism. Provided group and irMlivldual therapy, relaxntioo training. , *

1976 Soda! Worker, Massaebasatta Instllute of Techaobgy, Out-fatieQl Ptycbiatry, Cambrldgt, MA
Employed in futl'iime summer position providing out patient counseling to individuals and groups of the.
MITeommuniiy. '

1971.1976 Progmm Couaselor/Supervlsor, Maisichusftta loilltotc ofTocbnolDgy, MIT/Welltfley College
Upward Bound Program, Cambridge and WcOcslcy, MA
Major retpontibllUies consisted of psycho aduostional counseling of Upward ̂ nd siuderus, supervision
of tutoring staff, tcachirrg. conducting evaluative research fbr program polky dcvtlopmeni.



EDUCATION

I98ft-)991 Rivicr Cottcgc, Nftihut. NH -> Bachelor ofScicncc, Accounting

OTHER ACHIEVEMENTS

Lkoticd Ccitificd Pub&e Accountint in the Stite of New Htmpthirc
Maobet of the New Himpehicc'Sodciy of CcciiSed PubSc Accwntutn
Merabo of the American lostiRue of CcrtlRcd Pub6c Accoununn

SOP-nPARE EXFRRIENCE

Eicd, Word, PowerPoint, Pro-Fx Tu aoftwice, Pro-Fx Tdtl bidance aoftwuc, Quickbooita.
Pcadiute, T>V«iue, varioua audittftg aoftwire prognmi



WENDY LEBLANC

mCHLIGHTS OF QUALinCATIONS

Over twOTty years of experience providing intensive Case Management services to an
ethnically diverse population of HIV+ individuals.
Over twenty-five years of management experience including staff training and
development.
Competent and reliable professional with a proven record of success in assuming
increasing levels of responsibility.
Outstanding communication and organizational skills.

Skilled in use of Microsoft Word, Access, Excel, PowerPoint and Publisher.

RELEVANT SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

ADMINISTRATION/MANAGEMENT

•  Successful management of several client service programs at AIDS Service Organization.
Budgeting, tracking, reporting and implementing services to consistently exceed goals for
number of clients saved while expending budgets efficiently.

• Director of Client Services 2004-2006, Vice President 2006-prcsent

KNOWLEDGE OF HIV/AIDS

• Member of Client Services team, providing quality Case Management and other support
services to HIV+ individuals.

•  Support Group Facilitator for HIV+ individuals and their caregivers.
• Member of NH HIV Planning Group (liaison for Medical Case Managers)
•  Certified HIV Test Counselor.

PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT

•  Developed and Implemented Respite Care Program, including volunteer/provider training,
volimteer handbook and all tracking procedures and database. Successfully coordinated in-
home services for HIV+ individuals, regularly exceeding goals for number of clients served.

•  Restructured HOPWA (Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS) Program ($547,000
budget) to comply with HUD guidelines. Expanded areas of supportive services to include
more support for basic needs, increasing the number of clients served in this capacity by over
50%. - -

•  Lead grant writer and implcmenter of new HOPWA program providing ongoing subsidies for
31 individuals and families living with HIV/AIDS with a three year budget of $1.4 million.

•  Secured funding for and implemented expansion of Food Pantry services to include culturally
appropriate foods for all agency clients.

•  Successfully applied for and was awarded NH Statewide HIV contract fitjm NH DPHS
•  Expanded services to include a satellite office in Keene, NH,
•  Assumed responsibility for the HIV insurance Benefit Management program on behalf of the

State of NH Ryan White CARE Program.

•  Implemented Syringe Services Alliance of the Nashua Area as a collaborative, community
harm reduction program.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS



• Member of Greater Nashua Continuum of Care on Homelessness. (Vice Chair 2006-2008,
Chair 2008-2013, Clerk 2013-2017, Advisory Board member 2017-prescnt)

• Member of NH HIV Planning Group (Advisory committee member 2013-present)
• Member of Boston EMA Ryan White Part A Planning Council (2009-2014,2016-present)
• Member of Nashua's Public Health Advisory Council Executive Committee (2018-present)

WRITING/EDrnNG

•  Successful grant writing for Client Service programs
• Quarterly and aimual progress reporting for Client Service programs.

ACHIEVEMENTS

•  2006 Recipient of AIDS Housing Corporation's MedofT AIDS Housing Award
•  Recognized by Springfield College's School of Human Resources in Manchester, NH for

outstanding contributions as a leader in continuum care.
•  2014 Nashua Telegraph's 25 Most Extraordinary Woman

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

1999-present Client Services/Office Manager Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force
(presently Vice President) Nashua, NH

1998-1999 Customer Service Winco Identification, Nashua, NH

1990-1998 Studio Manager/District Trainer Lifetouch Portrait Studios, Nashua, NH
1987-1990 Store Manager Popeye's Fried Chicken, Nashua, NH

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT IN AREAS SUCH AS:

• Management Skills • HIV/AIDS Care, including HIV Counseling and Testing
•  Customer Service • Cultural Competency
•  Psychiatric Emergencies • Anger Management and Difficult Behaviors
•  End of Life Issues • Harm Reduction

• Compassion Fatigue

• Grant Writing



Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Peter Kelleher President & CEO $338,146 0% $0

Wendy LeBlanc Vice President $80,300 5% $4,015

'



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

JefTiry A. Meyers
Coramissiooer

Lisa M. Morris

Director

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-27M50t 1^00-852-3345 Ext. 4S01

Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 4, 2019

\

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to exercise a renewal option and amend an existing sole source agreement with
Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force, (Vendor # 156984 8001), 77 Northeastern
Boulevard, Nashua. NH, 03062 to continue providing Medical Case Management, Support
Services and Insurance Benefit Management Services to New Hampshire residents living with
HIV/AIDS by increasing the price limitation by $246,750 from $1,799,997 to $2,046,747 and by
extending the completion date from June 30, 2019 to October 31, 2019, effective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% Other Funds, Pharmaceutical Rebates.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
June 15, 2016 (Item #11A).

I  Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2020 with authority to
adjust amounts within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902510-22290000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE
CONTROL, PHARMACEUTICAL REBATES.

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

(Modified)
Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2020
102-

500731

Contracts

Prog Svc
for

90024602 $1,799,997 246,750 2,046.747

Total $1,799,997 $246,750 $2,046,747



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the Contractor is the only vendor in New
Hampshire who provides medical case management through a network of agencies that serve
individuals who have Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HiV) and who are enrolled in the NH
Ryan White CARE program.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing medical case management, support
services, and insurance benefit management services to individuals with HIV in New
Hampshire.

Approximately 350 individuals will be served from July 1, 2019 through October 31,
2019.

The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-1 that allows the Department to
renew the contract for up to three (3) years, subject to the continued availability of funding,
satisfactory performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval from the
Governor and Executive Council. The Department is in agreement with renewing services for 4
months of the 3 years at this time.

The contract ensures that NH residents living with HIV have access to Case
Management and Support Services, which includes enrollment in the NH Ryan White CARE
Program. The contract also includes provision of insurance benefits management services.

The Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force has met or exceeded its
performance measures, and health outcome measures, such as HIV Viral Suppression, have
improved.

Amending this contract is essential in order to continue access to services for 350
existing clients and provide services to new clients. HIV Case Managers will also begin to
engage in clinical quality improvement projects in an effort to further improve long term health
outcomes of clients.

This amendment will benefit the Department and residents of the State of New
Hampshire by limiting the spread of new infection and improving health outcomes for
individuals living with HIV.

Currently 630 clients are served under this contract.

The Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force's effectiveness in delivering
services will continue to be measured through monitoring of the following performance
measures the effectiveness of the amendment agreement:

•  100% of chart reviews result in zero (0) citations for assessment and service
planning standards.

•  100% of citations for assessment and service planning will have a corrective
action plan developed and approved by the NH CARE Prgoram within thirty (30)
days of receipt of site visit report.

•  100% of medical case management agencies will have developed a quality
statement for integration into a quality management plan.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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•  90% of initial (binding) premium payments will be made within five (5) business
days or receipt of payment invoice.

•  90% of ongoing monthly premium checks shall be made by the twenty-fifth (25'^)
day of the month prior ot the due date.

•  90% of medical copays and deductivels will have a a check issued within fifteen
(15) buisiness days of receipt of documentation for payment.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, NH Ryan White
CARE Program participants will lack support to enroll and remain active in the NH Ryan White
CARE Program, which provides access to pharmaceutical coverage, health insurance
premium assistance, primary medical care services, dental services, and mental health and
substance use disorder services. Non-involvement will subsequently cause a significant
proportion of clients to disengage from medical care and life sustaining antiretroviral therapy.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100 % Pharmaceutical Rebates.

In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no longer available. General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

sJ^rey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and Insurance Benefit Management for
Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Medical Case Management, Support Services,
and Insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

This 1** Amendment to the Medical Case Management, Support Services, and Insurance Benefit
Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS
Task Force, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a corporation with a place of business at 77

Northeastern Boulevard, Nashua, NH, 03062.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 15. 2016. (Item #11A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions. Paragraph 3, the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Fonn P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.4, Contractor Address, to read:

77 Northeast Boulevard.
Nashua. NH 03062

2. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

October 31, 2019

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$2,046,747.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D White. Director.

5. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

6. Delete Exhibit A Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A, Amendment #1 Scope
of Services.

7. Add Exhibit B-4 (SFY 2020) Budget Form.

8. Add Exhibit K DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force Amendment #1
RFP.2017.0PHS-06-MEDIC-01 Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and Insurance Benefit Management for
Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department/M Health and Human Services

Name: Lisa Moms

Title: Director

Date

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force

Name: Pcti^
Title: i

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of . County of on f/zz/x-)i^ before the undersigned officer,
personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

C

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: WILUAM C. MAFTTIN
Ju8tloeofthePea66-NewHampaMra
My Comtnlsslon Exptree November 4, 2020

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force
RFP.2017-OPHS-0&-MEOIC-01

Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and insurance Benefit Management for
Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

5^ 7^Name;

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force
RFP.2017-DPHS-06.MEDtC-01

Amendment 01

Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and
Insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

Exhibit A-1, Amendment #1

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Provisions Applicable to Ail Services
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirertients under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor agrees to the Department's Standards of Care for New Hampshire
HIV/AIDS Services, and as amended by the Department.

2. Definitions

2.1. AIDS - Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome. More Information may be found
at: httD://www.dhhs.nh.Qov/dDhsybchs/std/hivDrevention.htm.

2.2. CAREWare - softv^re for managing and monitoring HIV clinical and supportive
care.

2.3. HIV - Human Immunodeficiency Virus. More information may be found at:
httD://www.dhhs.nh.aov/dphs/bchs/std/h ivprevention.htm.

2.4. Licensed Clinician: A Licensed Clinician is defined as a registered nurse, nurse
practitioner, Physician, licensed clinical social worker, licensed mental health
counselor, licensed psychologist, or other licensed medical professional.

2.5. Medical. Case Management (MCM): The Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA), the federal agency that administers Ryan White Part B
(RWPB), defines MCM as a "range of client-centered services that link clients with
health care, psychosoclal, and other services."

2.6. Quarter or quarterly are the periods of January through March, April through June,
July through September and October through December.

2.7. State Fiscal Year is the period of July through June.

3. Project Description
3.1. The Contractor agrees to provide Medical Case Management as a core medical

service that Increases access to and retention In medical care for individuals with
Human Immunodeficiency Virus/Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome
(HIV/AIDS) In accordance to the United States Department of Health and Humans
Services, Health Resources and Service Administration (HRSA), The Ryan White
Treatment Extension Act of 2009.

SS-2017-DPHS^ME0IC-01

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force Contractor initials: f/ -/I
Exhibit A-1, Amendment #1 ^ A .

Page 1 of 11 Date: SJjJpQ



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and
Insurance Benefit Management for Clierrts with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

Exhibit A-1, Amendment #1

4. Scope of Work

4.1. The Contractor shall provide the following services/responsibilities:

4.1.1. Enroll individuals in to the NH Ryan White CARE Program (from herein
refer to as NH CARE Program) as follows:

4.1.1.1. Receive completed NH Care Services Program applications
from clients that Include the following but not limited to:

a. Documented medical diagnosis of Human

Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV);

b. Documented New Hampshire state address and residency

within the state;

c. Document monthly income equal to or less than 500% of the
Federal Poverty Level (FPL) according to the United States
Department of Health and Human Services;

d. Document the date that a NH Medicaid application was

completed annually by the client (for clients at or below

200% FPL), as applicable;

e. Completed Patient Medical Information (PMI) form issued by

the NH CARE. Program:

f. Documented type of insurance the client may have;

g. Documentation of screening clients for eligibility of Medicaid,
Medicare, third-party insurance, federal Health Insurance

Marketplace, and/or other insurance programs as well as

Social Security Disability, and Veterans Affairs benefit
programs, and other funding sources as appropriate; and

h. Documentation of assisting clients with completing and

submitting an application for those benefits listed in Section

g above or other benefits.

4.1.1.2. Assist clients with completing the NH CARE Service Program
application in Section 4.1.1.1 as needed.

4.1.1.3. Submit the completed NH CARE Service Program applications
in Section 4.1.1.1 to the Department who will determine eligibility
for services.

4.1.1.4. Receive from the Department, via CAREWare, approval of the
client's application and eligibility for HIV Case Management
Services under this contract.

4.2. The Contractor agrees not to enroll clients who are incarcerated in one of the State
of New Hampshire's op)erated correctional institutions.

SS-2017-DPHS-06-MEDIC-01

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force Contractor Initials: v/ fj
Exhibit A-1. Amendment #1 '
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and
Insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

Exhibit A-1, Amendment #1

4.3. The Contractor agrees not to provide services under this Contract for clients who
become incarcerated in one of the State of New Hampshire's operated correctional
institutions after their application and eligibility is approved by the Department.

4.4. The Contractor shall notify the Department when the action in Section 4.3 occurs.

4.5. The Contractor shall ensure clients approved for MCM services remain active In
the NH CARE Program, as follows:

4.5.1. Submit renewal applications no more than thirty (30) days prior to a
clients' enrollment end date to the Department's NH CARE Program
office to ensure the client in re-enrolled in the MCM program every six
months:

4.5.2. Submit the required information in Section 4.1.1.1. to the Department to
re-enroll a client into the program as required In Section 4.5.1.;

4.5.3. Agrees, that if clients experience an interruption in MCM enrollment, the
Department will not pay for services provided under this contract during
the Period of interruption, until the client in re-enrolled into the MCM
program; and

4.5.4. Assist clients with completing and submitting an application to Medicaid,
Medicare, federal Health Insurance Marketplace, and/or other
insurance programs as well as Social Security Disability, and Veterans
Affairs benefit programs.

4.6. The Contractor will provide NH CARE Program clients with a comprehensive range
of MCM services that adhere to the Standards of Care, which include, at a

minimum:

4.6.1. Assess the client using the NH assessment form from the Department
or a reasonable facsimile;

4.6.2. Complete an initial assessment of the client's needs and personal
support systems, that include at a minimum:

4.6.2.1. Medical provider information;

4.6.2.2. HIV history and HIV medication status;

4.6.2.3. Insurance status;

4.6.2.4. Employment and financial status;

4.6.2.5. Housing status;

4.6.2.6. Nutritional status;

4.6.2.7. Transportation status;

4.6.2.8. Mental health status;

4.6.2.9. Substance use history;

4.6.2.10. Personal support systems and relationships:

SS-2017-DPHS-06-MEDIC-01

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force Contractor Inrtiais:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and
Insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

Exhibit A-1, Amendment #1

4.6.2.11. The Individuals understanding of current HIV status and need for
medical care;

4.6.2.12. Individual's knowledge of safer sex and safer needle use;

4.6.2.13. Barriers and challenges to coordination of care; and

4.6.2.14. Overall level of acuity;

4.6.3. Maintain the completed assessment in Section 4.5.2 in the clients file;

4.6.4. Develop individual ciient centered service plan using the NH Individuai

service plan form provided by the Department or a reasonable facsimile;

4.6.5. Develop an individual client centered service plan based on the needs
Identified In the assessment, that at a minimum Includes:

4.6.5.1. Goals identified by the client that at a minimum include:

a. The need and provision of HIV support services such as

those in Section 4.8.;

b. Client monitoring to assess the efficacy of the plan such as.

but not limited to the provision of support necessary to

assure the individual's adherence to medical treatment

plans including medical visits as evidenced by

documented communication with medical providers; and

c. Assurance that the service plan reflects clinical consultation

with a licensed clinician at least twice a year.

4.6.5.2. Action steps to achieve the goals; and

4.6.5.3. A specific date by which the client hopes to achieve the goals;

4.6.6. Maintain the completed client centered service plan in Section 4.5.5 in
the clients file;

4.6.7. Complete periodic re-evaluation and adaptation of the client's service
plan as necessary over the client's enrollment period such as but not
limited to:

4.6.7.1. Conduct a re-assessment of the participant's service plan every
six months to make revisions to reflect the individual's needs,

documented and filed in the client chart; and

4.6.7.2. Provide consultation to case managers from a licensed clinician
at least twice a year and as needed.

4.7. The Contractor shall have a transition and discharge plan for clients leaving the NH
CARE program that at a minimum Includes the requirements in the Standards of
Care for New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Services in section 1.3.

SS-2017-DPHS-06-MEDIC-01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and
Insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

Exhibit A-1, Amendment #1

4.8. The Contractor shall provide HIV Support Services as follows:

4.8.1. Provide or Coordinate the provision of the Support Services such as
Food and Nutrition, Medical transportation, and Housing services as In
Section 4.8.3, when the need for support services Is documented in the
client's service plan;

4.8.2. Document that all other client funding sources such as but not limited to
those listed in Section 4.1.1.1 g, have been exhausted or that support
services are not an available benefit, prior to billing the Department
under this contract for the Support Services In Section 4.8.3.

4.8.3. Provide support services in accordance to the Standards of Care for
HIV/AIDS Services, referenced in section 1.3 and as follows:

4.8.3.1. Food and Nutrition

a. The Contractor shall provide, supplemental food and

medical nutrition therapy services to reduce hunger and

maintain overall positive health status. The Contractor may

provide such as but not limited to: supermarket debit cards,

or food vouchers: and includes registered dietician services,

and/or nutritional supplemerits as well as personal hygiene

products; and

b. The Contractor agrees that Food vouchers may only be

used for the purchase of food and personal hygiene

products and may not be used for the purchase of alcohol

or cigarettes. The Contractor agrees that emergency food

should be purchased by the contractor or agrees to refer

clients' community food banks.

4.8.3.2. Medical Transportation

a. The Contractor shall arrange for transportation for clients to

ensure access to medical care and other HIV related health

services and appointments. The Contractor may offer

transportation In the forms of taxi vouchers, using their own

van, volunteer rides, and/or bus tokens.

4.8.3.3. Housing

a. The Contractor shail prevent homeiessness by assisting a

client in finding short-term houslr>g assistance to support

emergency, temporary or transitional housing. The

Contractor may also assist the client in providing financial

assistance such as for utility assistance or paying for the

clienl's rent to remain in the client's home.

SS-2017-DPHS-06-MEDIC-01 /O^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and
Insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

Exhibit A-1, Amendment #1

4.9. Insurance Benefit Management (Bill Paying Services)

4.9.1. The contractor will provide the following insurance benefit management
(IBM) services that will process payments on behalf of the clients for
insurance premiums, medical care co-pays and deductibles as follows:

4.9.3.1. Continue implementation of IBM services, in accordance with the
standards of care.

4.9.3.2. Agrees to continue implementation of the following services and
processes:

a. Develop and maintain relationships with health insurance

carriers to facilitate continuity of coverage on behalf of NH

CARE Program clients;

b. Collect invoices and other documentation from clients,

insurance companies, and healthcare providers for all

payments made on behalf of NH CARE Program clients;

c. Submit invoices at least monthly for Department approval

for insurance premiums, co-pays, and deductibles;

d. Receive notification of the Departments approval of items

listed In Section 4.1.6.13.;

e. Develop and facilitate a process for making payments to

health Insurance carriers and healthcare providers;

f. Process insurance premium payments on behalf of eligible

NH CARE Program clients, including but not limited to;

private Insurance, Medicare Supplementary, Medicare

Part D plans, and COBRA plans:

g. Collect and adjudicate insurance copayments and

deductible claims for outpatient visits, lab tests, and

procedures; and

h. Process payments for copays and deductibles on behalf of

eligible NH CARE Program clients to medical providers

(excluding Emergency room, inpatlent and urgent care

visits), as outlined in the Department's Standards of Care

for New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Services, Section 1.3.

4.10. Contractor agrees to provide, maintain and train staff to continue implementation
and. maintain operation of the IBM.

5. Deliverable

5.1. The Contractor agrees to provide MCM, Support Services, and Insurance Benefit
Management services for up to 700 NH CARE Program clients statewide per State
Fiscal Year.

SS-2017-DPHS-06-MEDIC-01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and
Insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

Exhibit A-1, Amendment #1

6. Staffing
6.1. The Contractor will ensure that all MOM services are delivered by a qualified case

manager who meets at least one of the following criteria:

6.1.1. A licensed clinician;

6.1.2. A person under the direct supervision of a licensed clinician; and

6.1.3. A person who works with a licensed clinician who is part of the clinical
care team.

6.2. The Contractor will ensure that all qualified case managers hold at minimum a
bachelor's degree, or having extensive experience in a human services related field
such as social work, psychology, nursing, counseling, or health education, as well
as experience in the field of HIV.

7. Compliance and Reporting Requirements
7.1. The contractor shall:

7.1.1. Comply with the rules, regulations and policies as outlined by HRSA,
NH DHHS. Division of Public Health Services (DPHS), and Bureau of
Infectious Disease Control (BIDC) including but not limited to the NH
Standards of Care for MCM and the BIDC Security and Confidentiality
Policy.

7.1.2. Demonstrate that all other funding sources are fully exhausted before
Ryan White funds are utilized. Funded contractors are responsible for
screening clients for eligibility of Medicaid, Medicare, third-party
insurance, and other funding sources as appropriate.

7.1.3. Participate in no less than one unannounced or announced site visit per
year by the Department that will include at a minimum:

7.1.3.1. Review of financial records;

7.1.3.2. Review of programmatic documentation;

7.1.3.3. Review of Key personnel involved in implementation of the
Scope of Services at any and all locations where funded
activities occur;

7.1.3.4. The release of all records for inspection by the Department, upon
request, including but not limited to:

a. Data;

b. Financial records;

c. Scheduled access to Contractor work

sites/locationsAvork spaces and associated

facilities;

SS-2017-DPHS-06-MEDIC-01
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Insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

Exhibit A-1, Amendment #1

d. Unannounced access to Contractor work

sites/locations/work spaces and associated

facilities;

e. Scheduled phone access to Contractor principals

and staff; and

f. Timely unscheduled phone response by Contractor

principals and staff.

7.1.4. Comply with all applicable responsibilities outlined in the HRSA,
HIV/AIDS Bureau (HAS) National Monitoring Standards, as instructed
by Department.

7.1.5. Utilize the Department's the CAREWare software application, for the
documentation of eligibility, initial and re-assessments, individual
service plans and provision of support services.

7.1.6. Work with the Department as necessary to obtain and access the
software to interface and to connect with the CAREWare software.

7.1.7. Ensure the proper security when using the CAREWare software and
accessing electronic records, as defined by the Department's DPHS,
BIDC's Security and Confidentiality Policy.

7.2. The Contractor shall comply with the following Reporting Requirements
(Reports/Records/Documentation):

7.2.1. Maintain a client signed Consent for Release of Information Form by
using the Department's form or a reasonable facsimile, on file to permit
the Department to review records at site visits and share information
with service providers, pharmacies, the NH CARE Program and other
payers.

7.2.2. Maintain an electronic client file in CAREWare (paper chart may exist in
addition to CAREWare) for every enrolled NH CARE Program client.

7.2.3. Ensure that both the electronic and paper client files include at a
minimum:

7.2.3.1. The initial Assessment Form and the semi-annual

Reassessment Form;

7.2.3.2. The individual service plan;

7.2.3.3. Confidentiality policy;

7.2.3.4. Grievance policy;

7.2.3.5. Release of infonnation form;

7.2.3.6. Date, type and duration of each encounter;

7.2.3.7. HIV status documentation;

7.2.3.8. Income verification;

SS-2017-DPHS-06-MEDIC-01
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7.2.3.9. Insurance verification;

7.2.3.10. Referrals made and referral outcomes; and

7.2.3.11. For incarcerated individuals, documentation of discharge
planning.

7.2.4. Submit a quarterly narrative report that reflects funded program
services. 30 days after the close of each quarter. The report shall
address:

7.2.4.1. The unduplicated number of clients Including demographic
characteristics (race, ethnicity, gender), transmission
category, and state of HIV-related illness;

7.2.4.2. Progress made and efforts undertaken to meet goals and
objectives In the Agreement;

7.2.4.3. Progress made toward performance measures;

7.2.4.4. Any problems, challenges or obstacles; and

7.2.4.5. Any actions taken or plans to resolve such problems,
obstacles or challenges in meeting the projected or targeted
goal or the contract.

7.2.5. Submit a year-end report 45 days after the end of the contract year in a
fonnat similar to the quarterly reports.

8. Performance Measures

8.1. The Contractor agrees to the following performance measures

8.1.1. Performance Measure #1

8.1.1.1. Goal: To ensure adherence to Standards of Care for NH

HIV/AIDS Services

8.1.2. Target: 100% of chart reviews result in zero (0) citations for assessment
and service planning standards.

8.1.3. Numerator: Number of charts reviewed at site visits that produced zero
citations for assessment and service planning.

8.1.3.1. Denominator: Number of charts reviewed at site visits.

8.1.4. Data Source: Site Visit Reports.

8.1.5. Performance Measure #2

8.1.5.1. Goal: To ensure citations for assessment and service
planning are addressed in a timely manner.

SS-2017-DPHS-06-MEDIC-01
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8.1.5.2. Target: 100% of citations for assessment and service
planning will have a corrective action plan developed and
approved by the NH CARE Program within thirty (30) days
of receipt of site visit report.

8.1.5.3. Numerator: Number of citations for assessment and

service planning with a corrective action plan that were
received and approved within thirty (30) days of receipt of
site visit report.

8.1.5.4. Denominator: Numt^er of citations for assessment and

service planning.

8.1.5.5. Data Source: Site Visit Report and Corrective Action Plan.

8.1.6. Performance Measure #3

8.1.6.1. Goal: To integrate clinical quality management into NH
HIV/AIDS Services.

8.1.6.2. Target: 100% of medical case management agencies will
have developed a quality statement for integration into a
quality management plan.

8.1.6.3. Numerator: Number of quality statements.

8.1.6.4. Denominator: Number of medical case management
agencies.

8.1.6.5. Data Source: Quality management plan submission and
approval dates.

8.1.7. Insurance Benefit Management Timeliness Standards -Performance
Measure #1

8.1.7.1. Goal: To ensure the timeliness of the initial (binding)
premium payments.

8.1.7.2. Target: 90% of initial (binding) premium payments will be
made within five (5) business days or receipt of payment
invoice.

8.1.7.3. Numerator: Number of initial (binding) premium payments
rpade within five (5) business days of receipt of payment
invoice.

8.1.7.4. Denominator: Total number of Initial (binding) premium
payment invoices received.

8.1.7.5. Data Source; Contractor shall track this data independently
and report in the aggregate in the quarterly report due under
Section 7.2.4 of this Agreement.

8.1.8. Insurance Benefit Management Timeliness Standards - Performance
Measure #2

SS-2017.DPHS-06-MEDIC-01

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force Contractor Initials:
Exhibit A-1. Amendment #1

Page 10 of 11 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and
Insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

Exhibit A-1, Amendment #1

8.1.8.1. Goal: To ensure timelines of ongoing monthly premium
checks.

8.1.8.2. Target: 90% of ongoing monthly premium checks shall be
made by the twenty-fifth (25th) day of the month prior to the
due date.

6.1.6.3. Numerator: Number of ongoing premium payments made
by the twenty-fifth (25th) day of receipt of month prior to the
due date.

8.1.8.4. Denominator: Total numt)er of ongoing premium payment
Invoices received before the twenty-fifth (25th) day of the
month prior to the due date.

8.1.8.5. Data Source: Contractor shall track this data independently
and report in the aggregate in the quarterly report due under
Section 7.2.4 of this Agreement.

8.1.9. Insurance Benefit Management Timeliness Standards - Performance
Measure #3

8.1.9.1. Goal: To ensure timeliness of medical copay and deductible
payments.

8.1.9.2. Target: 90% of medical copays and deductibles will have a
check issued within 15 business days of receipt of
documentation for payment.

8.1.9.3. Numerator: Number of medical copays and deductibles
with a check issued within 15 business days of receipt of
documentation for payment.

8.1.9.4. Denominator: Total number of medical copays and
deductibles received.

8.1.9.5. Data Source: Contractor shall track this data independently
and report in the aggregate in the quarterly report due under
Section 7.2.4 of this Agreement.

SS-2017-DPHS-06-MEDIC-01

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force Contractor initials;
Exhibit A-1, Amendment #1
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Exhibit B-4 (SFY 2020)

Budget Form

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS
Bidder/Contractor Name: Task Force

Medical Case Management, Support

Services, and Insurance Benefit

Management for Clients with Human

Budget Request for: immunodeficiency Virus
(Name of Program)

Budget Period: July 1. 2019 through October 31, 2020

Direct Indir^ Total

Urteltem •. ' . incremental Hxed '

1. Total SalaryAWaoes $ 36.077 % 3.608 $ 39,684

2. Employee Benefits $ 9,105 $ 910 S 10,015

3. Consultants $ 4.486 S 449 $ 4,937

4. Eoulpment: s •

Rental $ •

Repair and Maintenance $ 3,494 $ 349 $ 3,843

Purchase/Depredation $ 680 $ 66 $ 748

5. Supplies: $

Educational $

Lab $

Pharmacy $

Medical $ -

Office $ 1.870 $ 187 $ 2,057

6. Travel $ 2,040 $ 204 s 2,244

7. Occupancy $ 9,180 $ 918 $ 10,098

8. Current Expertses $ -  ,

Telephone $ 1,700 $ 170 $ 1,870

Postage $ 1,020 s 102 $ 1,122

Subscriptions $ ■

Audit and Legal $ 1,224 s 122 $ 1,346

Insurance $ 1,020 $ 102 $ 1,122

Board Expenses $ 34 $ 3 s 37

9. Software $

10. Marketinq and Communications $ I.

11. Staff Education and TrainirK) $ 680 $ 68 $ 748

12. Subcontracts $ 144,431- s 14,443 $ 158,874

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ -

Food and Nutrition $ 5,100 $ 510 $ 5,610

Medical Transportation $ 1,360 s 136 $ 1.496

LInqulstIc Services $ 136 $ 14 $ 150

Housinq $ 680 s 68 $ 748

' $ $ •

$

$ -

TOTAL $ 224,318 $ 22,432 $ 246,750

Allocation Method for

t^ifvct^boed Cost

Melhod A-Total program
cost/Total cc^t for all

programs-Ceiling rate
set at 10% per RFP

indirect As A Percent of Direct ID.0%

Exhibit B-4 •

Budget {SPY
2020)

Budget Form

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:

Date:

M-
_s.:Ay/-f



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

(

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance beneftts and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numt)ers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Conitactor Initials,
DHHS information

Security Requirementsirity Requirements --7 / ̂
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security numt>er, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information' (or 'PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBIUTIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and atx>ve those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 3 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be

installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will

structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will

be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSmON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

6. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and antl-matware utilities. The environment, as a

V5. Last update 10/09/18 ExNbit K
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor \mII maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanltization. or othenwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will t>e jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise sp>ecified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor InHials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential inforrnatlon
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NM systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor. Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate .time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any.security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all" applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of P) and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, Including,

but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or. access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/dort/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential Information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. Including any
derivative files containing personalty identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-t>ased
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and-Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. If so. Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 35d-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer.

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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Jeffrey A. Meyerj
Commltslener

' Marcdli J. Bobiniky
Acting Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

29 HAZENDRlVt, CONCORD, NH 03J0l-«503

60>27i-46i2 l<<00-852-3345 Ext. 4612

Fa(:603-27l-4S27 TDDAcceis: 1-100-735-2964

May 18. 2016

v» ^YJ^' NH DIVISION" OF
Public Health Services

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health Services, to
enter into a sole source Agreement with Southem New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force. (Vendor
#156984 B001), 45 High Street, Nashua, NH. 03060.'to provide medical case management, support
services, and medical insurance benefit program to individuals with Huriian Immunodeficiency Virus, in
an amount not to exceed $1,799,997, effective July 1, 2016 upon Govemor and Executive Council
approval through June 30. 2019.100% Other Funds; Pharmaceutical Rebates.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2017 and anticipated to be
available in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019, upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and
adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified,
without approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-90-902'510-22290000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL.
PHARIilACEUTICAL REBATES

State

Rscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2017 102-500731

Contracts for Prog
Svc 90024602 $599,999

2018 102-500731

Contracts for Prog
Svc 90024602 $599,999

2019 102-500731

Contracts for Prog
Svc 90024602 $599,999

Total $1,799,997

EXPLANATION

This Requested Action Is sole source t>ecause the Contractor is the only Vendor in New
Hampshire who provides medical case management through a network of subcontractors to serve
Individuals who have Human Immunodeficiency Virus and wt>o are enrolled in the Ryan White
Program. The original competitive procurement for these services occurred in 2012 for medical case
management and support services. This Vendor was the only Vendor who submitted a proposal to
provide these services. Additionally, up to 650 Ryan White Program clients have established
relationships with the medical case managers and disruption in access to services would create
openings for individuals to fall out of medical care. The Ryan White Program is a fedefially-funded
program administered .by the United States Department of Health and Human Services, Health



Her Excellency, Margaret Wood Hassan
and Her Honorable Council
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Resources and Services Administration. The purpose of the Ryan White Program is to ensure that low
income individuals living with Human Immunodeficiency Virus have access to affordable health care
and medical treatments.

Approval of this Agreement will allow the Contractor to continue to provide medical case
management, support senrices. and additionally, the provision of insurance benefit management.
Medical case management services include a comprehensive assessment of client needs; the
development of an individual client centered service plan; and documented communication with
medical providers to assure that clients remain engaged in medical care. Support services include the
provision of supplementary food/nutrition services, medical transportation, housing services and
linguistic services. The provision of medical case management and support services links Individuals
wlx) are uninsured, underinsured or low-income to essential health services and prevents or reduces
the disruption of retention in medical care.

Additionally, approval of this Agreement will allow the Contractor to provide a new service.
Insurance Benefit Management services. Insurance Benefit Management services include the
payment of Insurance premiums as well as co-pays and deductibles for outpatient services. Those
payments are currently managed by Ryan White Program staff in the Department's Division of Public
Health Services. The transition of Insurance Benefit Management activities to the Contractor will allow
Insurance Benefit Management services to continue to expand to serve more clients In New
Hampshire. Also this transition will allow the Division of Public Health Services staff who manages the
Insurance Benefit Management services to redirect their responsibilities to contract monitoring for the
Ryan White contracts for services such as dental, medical, mental health and substance abuse
counseling that were approved by Governor & Council in 2014 and 2015.

The services provided by this Contractor are not duplicated elsewhere in the State and will
benefit the general New Hampshire population by limiting the spread of new infection and improving
health outcomes for persons living with Human Immunodeficiency Virus.

As referenced in the Exhibit C-1 of the Agreement, the Agreement Includes the option to renew
for up to three (3) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, program participants will
lack support to enroll and remain active in the Ryan White Program, which provides access to
pharmaceutical coverage, health insurance premium assistance, primary medical care senrices, dental
services, and mental health and substance abuse services. Non-involvement will subsequently cause a
significant proportion of clients to disengage from medical care arxl life sustaining antiretrovlral
therapy.

The Department has contracted with this Vendor for the past four years and has met or
exceeded the performance measures outlined in the current contract as defined below, except for the
Insurance Benefit Management. The last performance measure is new to this contract. These
measures, which are monitored through reporting requirements and site visits, will continue to be used
to measure the effectiveness of the agreement.

85% of clients, who re-enroll in the Ryan White Program over a one-year period, do so
without an enrollment lapse.
90% of clients have a comprehensive care plan developed, documented and/or updated
two or more times over the course of a year.

•  85% of clients' service plans are reviewed by a licensed clinician at least twice a year.
•  Ensure timely payments of premiums, copay, and deductibles to insurance and medical

providers under the insurance Benefit Management.



Her Excellency. Margaret Wood Hassan
and Her Honorable Council
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Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds. Pharmaceutical Rebates

Respectfully submitted,

Marcella J. ̂ binsky. MPH
AcIIqq Director

Approved by: I T
i^rey A. Mayers
Commissioner

Th9 Dvpartment ofHetlth snd Human Services' Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health end independence-



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: Medical Case Management. SuoDon Services, and Insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human

Immunodeficiency Vims fSS-2017.DPHS-06-MEDIC-On

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, conndentiai or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State ofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State AgerKy Name
Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Stale Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force
1.4 Contractor Address

45 High Street
Nashua, NH, 03060

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-595-8464

1.6 Account Number

05-95-90-902510-2229-102-

500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2019

1.8 Price Limitation

SI.799.997

1.9 Contracting Ofllccr for State Agency
Eric B. Borrin, Director

I.IO State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9558

1 11 Contractftf Si^aty^ 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

7/?^, cU-, C£0
1.13 Acknowledgement: Shatcof .Coumyof "H"'

On .before the undersigned ofiicer. personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name Is signed in block 1. II. and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public nr^Jusiicc of the Peace

iScaJl

WENDY uetANC. Notary Public
Commission Expbss Psbruniy 28.201d

1.1.1.2 Name .v)4J"iiie of Notary or Justice of the Peace

le/vo^

1.14 Stale Agency Sign^e ,

.16 A\

}k

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency bign^ory

Date: J
1.16 Approval by tnc N.H. Department of Administration. Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, Or:

the AuornfV General (l-orm. Substance aixl E.xecution) (if applicable)1.17 Approv

m ^l?> / wM
nd L.\ecuii(« Council jfifiipplicuble)1.18 Approval by the Cover

\is: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENTOF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State ofNcw Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (*'State"). engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described In the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council ofthe State ofNew Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the CovcrrMr
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18. unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1. U C'Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the EITeclivc Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Conuacior, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Comraaor must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. conditionalnatureofagreement.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the Slate shall have the right to withhold
payment until such furtds become available, ifever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State-
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identillcd and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State ofthe contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
e.\pcnscs. ol'vvhatcvcr nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Slate
shall ha^e no liability lo the Coniracior other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance ofthe Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may Include the requirement lo utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement Is funded In any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Stales Department of l^abor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as (he State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any ofthe
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own e.xpense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, aiul shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance ofihis
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Agreemeni. This provision shall survive termination of (his
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDJ ES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.J.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of E)efault and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accnte to the Contractor during the
period Irom the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the Stale may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATAyACCESS/CONFIDENTlALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
Information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 AM data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the propeny of the State, and
shall be returned to the Slate upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 •A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the Slate.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a rejx>n ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the Slate. Neither (he Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the Stale to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior >vritten notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the Slate.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
Slate, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily Injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,(XK)pcr occurrence and $2,0(X),000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
I lampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting OfTiccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificatefs)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor. certincate(s)of
inwrance for all renewa)(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
dateofeach ofthe insurance policies. The certiflcatefs) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificatefs) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contraaing Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice ofcancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements ofMJi. RSA chapter 28)-A. Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
arxi maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
conneaion with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Ofllcer identified in block 1.9, or his
or, her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event ofDcfault shall be deemed a
waiver of theri^t ofthe Slate to enforce each and allof the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Conlnicior.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post OfHce addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4. herein.

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
Statclaw, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT, AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws ofthe Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. AdditionaPprovisionsset
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

13. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
efTect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This A^cemeni, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council ofthe State of New Hampshire unless no
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and
insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

Exhibit A
d

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed desaiptlcn of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
n^eaningfut access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact cki
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor agrees to the Department's Standards of Care for New
Hampshire HIV/AIDS Services, and as amended by the Department.

2. Definitions

2.1. AIDS - Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome. More Information may be found
at: httD://www.dhhs.nh.Qov/dDhs/bchs/std/hivDrevention.htm.

2.2. CAREWare - software for managing and monitoring. HIV clinical and supportive
care.

2.3. HIV - Human Immunodeficiency Virus. More information may be found at:
httD://www.dhhs.nh.QOv/dphs/bchstetd/hivDrevention.htm.

2.4. Licensed Clinician: A Licensed Clinician is defined as a registered nurse, nurse
practitioner. Physician, licensed clinical social worker, licensed nnental health
counselor, licensed psychologist, or other licensed medlcai professional.

2.5. Medical Case Management (MCM): The Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA), the federal agency that administers Ryan White Part B
(RWPB), defines MCM as a 'range of client-centered services that link clients
with health care, psychosocial, and other services."

2.6. Quarter or quarterly are the periods of January through March, April through June,
July through September and October through December.

2.7. Slate Fiscal Year is the period of July through June.

3. Project Description
3.1. The Contractor agrees to provide Medical Case Management as a core medical

service that increases access to and retention in nriedical care for individuals with
Human Immunodeficiency Virus/Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome
(HIV/AIDS) in accordance to the United States Department of Health and
Humans Services. Health Resources and Service Administration (HRSA). The
Ryan White Treatment Extension Act of 2{X)9.

SS-2017-OPHS-06-MEOIC-01

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIOS Task Force ^
Exhibit A - Scope of Services Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and
Insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

Exhibit A

4. Scope of Work
4.1. The Contractor shall provide the following services/responsibilities:

4.1.1. Enroll individuals in to the NH Ryan White Care Program (from herein
refer to as NH CARE Program) as follows:

4.1.1.1. Receive completed NH Care Services Program applications
from clients that Include the following but not limited to:

a. Documented medical diagnosis of Human

Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV);

b. Documented New Hampshire state address and residency

within the state;

c. Document monthly income equal to or less than 400% of

the Federal Poverty Level (FPU) according to the United

States Department of Health and Human Services;

d. Document the date that a NH Medicaid application was

completed annually by the client;

e. Completed Patient Medical Information (PMI) form Issued
by the NH CARE Program.

f. Documented type of insurance the client may have.

g. Documentation of screening clients for eligibility of
Medicaid, Medicare, third-party insurance, federal Health

Insurance Mar1<etplace, and/or other insurance programs

as well as Social Security Disability, and Veterans Affairs

benefit programs, and other funding sources as

appropriate

h. Documentation of assisting clients with completing and

submitting an application for those benefits listed in

Section g above or other benefits.

4.1.1.2. Assist clients with completing the NH Care Service Program
application in Section 4.1.1.1 as needed

4.1.1.3. Submit the completed NH Care Service Program applications in
Section 4.1.1.1 to the Department who will determine eligibility
for services.

4.1.1.4. Receive from the Department, via CAREWare. approval of the
client's application and eligibility for HIV Case Managetoent
Services under this contract

4.2. The Contractor agrees not to enroll clients who are incarcerated in one of the
State of New Hampshire's operated correctional institutbns.

4.3. The Contractor agrees not to provide services under this Contract for clients who
become incarcerated In one of the State of New Hampshire's operated

SS-2017-OPHS-06-ME0IC-01

Southern New Hampshire HiV/AIOS Task Force
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management. Support Services, and
Insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

Exhibit A

corredlonal institutions after their application and eligibility Is approved by the
Department

4.4. The Contractor shall notify the Department when the action in Section 4.3 occurs.

4.5. The Contractor shall ensure clients approved for MCM services remain active in
the NH CARE Program, as follows:

4.5.1. Submit renewal applications at least one'month prior to a clients'
enrollment end date to the Department's NH CARE Program office to

ensure the client in re-enrolled in the MCM program every six months

4.5.2. Submit the required inforntatlon in Section 4.1.1.1. to the Department
to re-enroll a client into the program as required in Section 4.5.1.

4.5.3. Agrees, that if clients experience an interruption in MCM enrollment,
the Department will not pay for services provided under this contract
during the Period of interruption, until the client in re-enrolled into the
MCM program.

4.5.4. Assist clients with completing arxJ submitting an application to
Medicaid, Medicare, federal Health Insurance Marketplace, and/or
other insurance programs as well as Social Security Disability, and
Veterans Affairs benefit programs.

4.6. The Contractor will provide NH CARE Program clients with a comprehensive
range of MCM services to. include, at a minimum:

4.6.1. Assess the client using the NH assessment form from the Department
or a reasonable facsimile.

4.6.2. Complete an initial assessment of the client's needs and per^nal
support systems, that include at a minimum:

4.6.2.1. Medical provider information

4.6.2.2. HIV history and HIV medication status

4.6.2.3. Insurance status

4.6.2.4. Employment and financial status

4.6.2.5. Housing status

4.6.2.6. Nutritional status

4.6.2.7. Transportation status

4.6.2.8. Mental health status

4.6.2.9. Substance abuse history

4.6.2.10. Personal support systems and relationships

4.6.2.11. The Individuals understanding of current HIV status and
need for medical care.

4.6.2.12. Individual's knowledge of safer sex and safer needle use.

SS-2017-OPHS-06-MEDIC-01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management, Support Services, and
Insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

Exhibit A

4.6.2.13. Barriers and challenges to coordination of care.

4.6.3. Maintain the completed assessment in Section 4.5.2 In the clients file

4.6.4. Develop individual client centered service plan using the NH individual
service plan form provided by the Department or a reasonable
facsimile,

4.6.5. Develop an individual client centered service plan based on the needs
identifi^ In the assessment, that at a minimum includes:

4.6.5.1. Two or three goals identified by the client that at a
minimum include:

a. The need and provision of HIV support services such as

those in Section 4.7.

b. Client monitoring to assess the efficacy of the plan such
as, but not limited to the provision of support necessary

to assure the individual's adherence to medical

treatment plans including medical visits as evidenced by

documented communication with medical providers;

c. Assurance that the service plan reflects clinical

consultation with a licensed clinician at least twice a

year.

4.6.5.2. Action steps to achieve the goals, and

4.6.5.3. A specific date by which the client hopes to achieve the
goals.

4.6.6. Maintain the completed client centered service plan in Section 4.5.5 in
the clients file

4.6.7. Complete periodic re-evaluation and adaptation of the client's service
plan as necessary over the client's enrollment period such as but not
limited to:

4.6.7.1. Conduct a re-assessment of the participant's service plan
every six months to make revisions to reflect the
individual's needs, documented and filed in the client chart.

4.6.7.2. Provide consultation with a licensed clinician at least twice

a year and more often as needed.

4.7. The Contractor shall have a transition and discharge plan for clients leaving the
NH CARE program that at a minimum includes the requirements in the Standards
of Care for New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Services in section 1.3.

4.8. The Contractor shall provide HIV Support Services as follows:

SS-2017-DPHS-06-MEDIC-01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medical Case Management. Support Services, and
Insurance Benefit Management for Clients with Human Immunodeficiency Virus

Exhibit A

4.8.1. Provide or Coordinate the provision of the Support Services such as
Food and Nutrition, Medical transportation, and Housing services as in

■ Section 4.8.3, when the need for support services Is documented in
the client's service plan.

4.8.2. Document that all other client funding sources such as but not limited
to those listed in Section 4.1.1.1 g, have been exhausted or that
support services are not an available benefit, prior to billing the
Department under this contract for the Support Services in Section
4.8.3 .

4.8.3. Provide support services in accordance to the Standards of Care for
HIV/AIDS Services, referenced in section 1.3 and as follows:

4.8.3.1. Food and Nutrition

a. The Contractor shall provide, supplemental food and

medical nutrition therapy services to reduce hunger and
maintain overall positive health status. The Contractor

may provide such as but not limited to: supermarket debit

cards, or food vouchers; and includes registered dietician

services, and/or nutritional supplements as well as

personal hygiene products.

b. The Contractor agrees that Food vouchers may only be

used for the purchase of food and personal hygiene

products and may not be used for the purchase of alcohol

or cigarettes. The Contractor agrees to collect receipts

from the clients to confirm that purchases made. Tt>e

Contractor agrees that emergency food shpuld be
purchased by the contractor or agrees to refer clients'

community food banks.

4.8.3.2. Medical Transportation

a. The Contractor shall arrange for transportation for clients

to ensure access to medical care and other HIV related

health services and appointments. The Contractor may

offer transportation in the forms of taxi vouchers, using

their own van, volunteer rides, and/or bus tokens.

4.8.3.3. Housing

a. The Contractor shall prevent homelessness by assisting a

client in finding short-term housing assistance to support
emergency, temporary or transitional housing. The

Contractor may also assist the client in providing financial

SS-2017-OPHS-06-MEDIC.01

Southern New Hampshire HiV/AIDS Task Force
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Exhibit A

assistance such as for utility assistance or paying for the

client's rent to remain in the client's home.

4.9. Insurance Benefrt Management (Bill Paying Services)

4.9.1. The contractor will provide the - following insurance benefit
management (IBM) services that will process payments on behalf of
the clients for Insurance premiums, medical care co-pays and
deductibles as follows:

4.9.3.1. Submit a plan for Department approval within 30 days from the
contract effective date for the development, implementation,
transition and operation of the Insurance Benefit Managen^t
system.

4.9.3.2. Ensure to include the Department in the developing the plan in
Section 4.1.6.6

4.9.3.3. Agrees to have a completed plan in place within 90 days from
the contract effective date.

4.9.3.4. Agrees to include in the plan at a minimum a thorough process
to:

a. Develop and maintain relationships with health insurance

carriers to facilitate continuity of coverage on behalf of

NH CARE Program clients;
b. Collect Invoices and other documentation from clients,

insurance companies, and healthcare providers for all

payments made on behalf of NH CARE Program clients;

c. Submit Invoices at least monthly for Department approval

for insurance premiums, co-pays, and deductibles

d. Receive notification of the Departments approval of items

listed in Section 4.1.6.13.

e. Develop and facilitate a process for making payments to

health insurance carriers and healthcare providers;

f. Process insurance premium payments on behalf of

eligible NH CARE Program clients, including but not
limited to: private insurance. Medicare Supplementary.
Medicare Part D plans, and COBRA plans.

g. Collect and adjudicate insurance copayments and

deductible claims for outpatient visits, lab tests, and

procedures.

SS-2017-OPHS-06-MEDIC-01

Southern New Hampshire HtV/AIDS Task Force
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Exhibit A

Process payments for copays and deductibles on behalf

of eligible NH CARE Program clients to medical

providers (excluding Emergency room, inpatient and

urgent care visits), as outlined in the Department's

Standards of Care for New Hampshire HIV/AIDS

Services, Section 1.3.

Transition the program from the clients being served by

the Department to the Contractor.
Implerrtent the IBM within 90 days from the completed

plan in Section 4.1.6.8

4.10. The Contractor agrees to provide, maintain and train staff to implement, to
transition, and to operationalize the IBM.

5. Deliverable

5.1. The Contractor agrees to provide MCM, Support Services, and Insurance Benefit
Management services for up to 650 NH CARE Program clients statewide per
State Fiscal Year.

6. Staffing
6.1. The Contractor will ensure that all MCM services are delivered by a qualified case

manager who meets at least one of the following criteria;

6.1.1. A licensed clinician;

6.1.2. A person under the direct supervision of a licensed clinician;

6.1.3. A person who works with a licensed clinician who is part of the clinicdl
care team.

6.2. The Contractor will ensure that all qualified case managers hold at minimum a
bachelor's degree, or having extensive experience in a human services related
field such as social work, psychology, nursing, counseling, or health education,
as well as expen'ence in the field of HIV.

7. Compltance and Reporting Requirements
7.1. The contractor shall;

7.1.1. Comply with the rules, regulations and policies as outlined by HRSA,
NH DHHS, Division of Public Health Services (DPHS), and Bureau of

SS-2017.DPHS^)6-MEDlC-01
Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force
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Infectious Disease Control (BIDC) including but not limited to the NH
Standards of Care for MCM and the BIOC Security and Confidentiality
Policy.

7.1.2. Demonstrate that all other funding sources are fully exhausted before
Ryan \Vhite funds are utilized. Funded contractors are responsible for
screening clients for eligibility of Medicaid, Medicare, third-party
Insurance, and other funding sources as appropriate.

7.1.3. Participate in no less than one unannounced or announced site visit
per year by the Department that will Include at a minimum:

7.1.3.1. Review of financial records.

7.1.3.2. Review of programmatic documentation.

7.1.3.3. Review of Key personnel involved in implementation of the
Scope of Services at any and all locations where funded
activities occur.

7.1.3.4. Have available all records for

7.1.3.5. Provide access that includes but Is not limited to:

a. Data

b. Finandal records

c. Scheduled access to Contractor work

sites/locations/work spaces and associated facilities.

d. Unannounced access to Contractor work

sites/locations/work spaces and associated facilities.

e. Scheduled phone access to Contractor principals and

staff

f. Timely unscheduled phone response by Contractor

principals and staff.

7.1.4. Comply with all applicable responsibilities outlined in the HRSA.
HIV/AIDS Bureau (HAB) National Monitoring Standards, as instructed
by Department.

7.1.5. Utilize the Department's the CAREWare software application, for the
documentation of eligibility, initial and re-assessments, individual
service plans and provision of support services.

7.1.6. Work with the Department as necessary to obtain and access the
software to Interface and to connect with the CAREWare software.

7.1.7. Ensure the proper security when using the CAREWare software and
accessing electronic records, as defined by the Department's DPHS,
BIDC's Security and Confidentiality Policy.

7.2. The Contractor shall comply with the following Reporting Requirements
(Reports/Records/Documentation)

S$-2017-DPHS-OS-MEDlC-01

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force
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7.2.1. Maintain a client signed Consent for Release of Information Form by
using the Department's form or a reasonable facsimile, on file to
permit the Department to review records at site visits and share
information with service providers, pharmacies, the NH CARE
Program and other payers.

7.2.2. Maintain an electronic client file in CAREWare (paper chart may exist
in addition to CAREWare) for every enrolled NH CARE Program client.

7.2.3. Ensure that both the electronic and paper client files Include at a
minimum;

7.2.3.1. The initial Assessment Form and the semi-annual

Reassessment Form.

7.2.3.2. The individual service plan,

7.2.3.3. Confidentiality policy,

7.2.3.4. Grievance policy,

7.2.3.5. Release of Information form,

7.2.3.6. Date, type and duration of each encounter,

7.2.3.7. HIV status documentation,

7.2.3.8. Income verification,

7.2.3.9. Insurance verification,

7.2.3.10. Referrals made and referral outcomes,

7.2.3.11. For incarcerated individuals, documentation of discharge
planning.

7.2.4. Submit a quarterly narrative report that reflects funded program
services, 15 days after the close of each quarter. The report shall
address:

7.2.4.1. The unduplicated number of clients including demographic
characteristics (race, ethnicity, gender), transmission
category, and state of HlV-related illness;

7.2.4.2. Progress made and efforts undertaken to meet goals and
objectives in the Agreement;

7.2.4.3. Progress made toward performance measures;

7.2.4.4. Any problems, challenges or obstacles;

7.2.4.5. Any actions taken or plans to resolve such problems,
obstacles or challenges in meeting the projected or
targeted goal or the contract.

SS-2017-DPHS-06-MEDIC-01
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7.2.5. Submit a year-end report 45 days after the end of the contract year.
Year-end reports will follow a format similar to the quarterly reports.

8. Performance Measures

B. 1. The Contractor agrees to the following performance measures

8.1.1. Performance Measure #1

8.1.1.1. Goal: To ensure continuous access to Ryan White
services for MOM clients.

8.1.1.2. Target: 85% of clients, who re-enroll in the NH CARE
Program over a one-year period, do so without an
enrollment lapse.

8.1.1.3. Numerator: Number of MOM clients who re-enroll in the

NH CARE Program who do not

8.1.1.4. Denominator: Number of MCM clients who re-enroll in the
NH CARE Program during the measurement year.

8.1.1.5. Data Source: CAREWare

8.1.2. Performance Measure #2

8.1.2.1. Goal: To ensure that MCM clients had an individualized

service plan developed, documented and/or updated two
or more times in the measurement year.

8.1.2.2. Target: 90% of MCM clients had a care plan developed,
documented and/or updated two or more times over the
course of a year.

8.1.2.3. Numerator: Number of MCM clients who had a MCM care
plan developed, documented and/or updated two or nx)re
times in the measurement year.

8.1.2.4. Denominator: Number of HlV-infected MCM clients who

had at least one MCM encounter in the measurement year.

8.1.2.5. Data Source: CAREWare

8.1.3. Perfonnance Measure #3

8.1.3.1. Goal: To ensure that MCM client service plans are
reviewed t>y a licensed clinician after each reassessment
(every six months).

8.1.3.2. Target: 85% of MCM client service plans were reviewed
by a licensed clinician at least twice a year.

SS.2017.DPHS-06-ME01C-01
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8.1.3.3. Numerator: Number of MCM service plans updated every
six months that are signed by a licensed clinician.

8.1.3.4. Denominator Number of MCM service plans that are
updated/reassessed every six rTK>nths.

8.1.3.5. Data Source: CAREVl/are

8.1.4. Insurance Benefit Management Timeliness Standards

8.1.4.1. The mailing of an initial (binding) premium payment shall
be made within five business days of receipt of the
payment invoice.

8.1.4.2. Mailing of ongoing monthly premium checks shall be made
by the 25"* day of the month prior to their due date.

8.1.4.3. The time from the date of receipt of documentation for
payment of medical copays or deductibles to the date of
Issuing a check to the provider shall not exceed 10
business days.

8.1.4.4. The Contractor agrees these standards are dependent
upon the receipt of timely information from clients,
providers and carriers.

8.1.4.5. The Contractor agrees to make every effort to obtain timely
information from clients, providers and insurance carriers..

SS-2017.DPHS-06-MEDIC-01
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation. Block 1.8.
of the General Provisions, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A.

2. This Agreement is funded by. Other Funds, Pharmaceutical Rebates.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

The Contractor will submit an Invoice by the twentieth (20) working day of each month,
which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred In the prior
nxinth. The State shall make payment to the Contractor v/ithln sixty (60) days of receipt of

each invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement, invoices must be

submitted to:

Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord. NH 03301

Email: DPHScontractbilllng@dhhs.state.nh.us

4. Payment for contracted services In Exhibit A will be made on a cost reimbursement only, for
allovrable expenses based on budgets Identified in Exhibits 8*1, 8*2. and 8-3. Allowable
costs and expenses shall be determined by the Department in accordance with applicable

state and federal laws and regulations.

5. Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice
and if sufficient funds are available in the Service category budget line Items submitted by
the Contractor to cover the costs and expenses Incurred in the performances of the services.

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the P-37, an amendment limited to Exhibits B-1, 8-2, B-3
to adjust line item amounts within the budgets within the price limitation, can be made by
written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of Governor
and Executive Council.

7. \Afhen the contract price limitation is reached the program shall continue to operate at full
capadty at no charge to the Department for the duration of the contract period.

8. Funding may not be used to replace funding for a program already funded from another
source.

9. The Contractor will keep financial records of their activities related to Department programs
and services.

SS-2017-DPHS-06-MEDIC-01
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10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this agreement may be withheld, In whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any

Federal or State law; rule or regulaUon applicable to the'services provided, or if the said
services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms

and conditions of this agreement.

I  I

11. The Contractor shall have written authorization from the State prior to using contract funds
to purchase any equipment with a cost in excess of three hundred dollars ($300) and with
useful life beyond one year.

11.1. The Contractor shall submit to the Department's Contract Unit prior to purchase a

list of the purchased office equipment (with funding from this Contract) to provide
the Services in Exhibit A. The list shall include office equipn>ent such as. but not

limited to, laptop computers, printers/scanners, and phones with the make, model,

and serial number of each piece of office equipment.

11.2. The (Contractor shall return said office equipment in Section 5.2 to the

Department's Contract Unit within 30 days from the completion date of the Contract.

12. The Contractor will have forty-five (45) days from the end of the contract period to submit to
the Department final invoices for payment. Any adjustments made to a prior invoice will
need to be accompanied by supporting documentation.

SS-2017-OPHS-06-MeDIC-01
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Exhibit B-1 (SPY 2017)
Budget

New Hampshire Oepartmont of Health and Human Services

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS
Bidder/Contractor Name: Task Force

iweoicai case management, support

Services, and Insurance Benefit

Management for Clients with Human

Budget Request for: Immunodeficiency Virus
(Name of Program^

Budget Period: July 1, 2016 through June 30. 2017

"il.

I. Total Salary/Wages

2. Empioyee Benefits
3. Consultants

I. Equipment:
Rental

Repair and Maintenance
Purchase/Depredation

5. Supplies:

Educatiortal

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

6. Travel

7. Occupancy

6. Current Exper^es

Telephone

Postage

Subsarptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

9. Software

10. Marketing and Communications
11 ■ Staff Education and Trainlr>g

12. Subcontracts

13. Other (spedfic details mandatory):
Food arKf Nutrition

Medical Transportation

UrTguistic Services
Housing

TOTAL

89,440

23,254

13,800

5.279

2.000

5.473

3.000

27,000

5,000

2.000

3.600

1.500

200

500

334,008

20.000

7.000

400

2,000

i  ̂̂.454

8,944

2.325

1,380

528

200

547

300

2,700

500

200

360

150

20

50

$ 33,401

2.000

700

40

200

S  54,545

$  98,364

$  25,579

$  15,180

$  5,807

2,200

6,020

3,300

$  29,7X

5,500

2,2X

3,960

1,650

220

550

$ 367,409

$ - 22,000

7.7X

440

2.2X

$  599,999

Method A-Total program
cost/Total cost for aD

programs-Ceiling rate
set at 10% per RFP

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0%

Exhibit 8-1 • Budget {SFY 17) Contraclor Initials: _
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Exhibit B-2 (SPY 2018)
Budget Form

New Hampshire Oepartment of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task ForC'

Medical Case Management. Support
Services, and Insurance Benefit Management
for Clients with Hun>an Immunodeficiency

Budget Request for: Virus
(Name of Program)

Budget Period: July 1,2017 - June 30, 2018

1. Total SalaryAVaqes S 89.440 $ 8,944 $ 98,384

2. Employee Benefits $ 23.254 $ 2,325 % 25.579

3. Consultants $ 13,800 $ 1,380 $ 15,180

4. Equipment: $

Rental $ -

Repair and Maintenance % 5.279 $ 528 % 5.807

Purchase/Oeprectation $ 2,000 $ 200 S 2,200

5. Supplies: s -

Educational s

Lab $

Pharmacy $

Medical $ -

Office $  5.473 $ 547 $ 6,020

6. Travel $  3,000 $ 300 $ 3,300

7. Occupancy $  27,000 $ 2,700 $ •29.700

8. Current Expenses s -

Telephone S  5,000 $ 500 $ 5,500

Postage 5  2.000 $ 200 $ 2,200

Subscriptions $ -

Audit and Legal $  3.600 $ 360 $ 3.960

' Insurance $  1,500 S 150 $ 1,650

Board Expenses $  200 $ 20 $ 220

9. Software s -

10. Marketing and Communications $ -

11. Staff Education and Training $  500 $ 50 $ 550

12. Sut>contracts $  334.008 s 33,401 $ 387.409

13. Other (specinc details mandatory): $ -

Food and Nutrition $  20,000 1 2,000 $ 22.000

Medical Transportation $  7.000 5 •700 $ 7,700

Linguistic Services S  400 5 40 $ 440

Housing $  2.000 $ 200 $ 2.2X

$ -

%

s -

TOTAL i 545.454 i 54,545 $ 599,999

Method A-Total program
cost/Total cost for all

programs-Celling rate
set at 10% per RFP

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

ExhlM B-2 - Budget (SPY 18)
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Exhibit B-3 (SFY 2019)
Budget Form

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Southern New Hampshire HiV/AIDS Task
Bidder/Contractor Name: Force

Medical Case Management, Support
Services, and Insurance Benefit

Management for Clients with Human

Budget Request for Immunodeficiency Virus
(Name of Program)

Budget Period: July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019

1. Total Salary/Wages S 89,440 $ 8,944 $ 98,384

2. Emplovee Benefits $ 23.254 $ 2,325 $ 25,579

3. Consultants S 13.600 $ 1.380 $ 15.180

4. Equipment: $ -

Rental S -

' Repair and Maintenance s 5.279 S 526 $ 5,807

Purchase/Depreciation s 2,000 $ 200 $ 2.200

5. St^plies: $ -

Educational $

Lab $

Pharmacy $

Medical $ -

Office $  5.473 S 547 $ 6.020

6. Travel $  3.000 $ 300 $ 3,300

7. Occupancy S  27.000 $ 2,700 $ 29.700

8. ' Current Expenses 1  1 $ -

Telephone $  5,000 $ 500 $ 5,500

Postage $  2.000 $ 200 $ 2.200

'  Subscriptions 1  1 $ -

Audit and legal $  3.600 $ 360 s 3.960

InsurarKe $  1.500 $ 150 $ 1.650

Board Expenses $  200 $ 20 $ 220

9. Software s -

10. Marketing and Communications $ -

11. Staff Education and Training $  500 $ 50 $ 550

12. Subcontracts $  334.008 s 33.401 $ 367.409

13. Other (specific details mandatory): 1  1 $ -

'  Food and Nutrition $  20,000 $ 2.000 $ 22.000

Medical Transportation $  7.000 $ 700 $ 7.700

Linguistic Services $  400 $ 40 $ 440

Housing $  2,000 $ 200 $ 2.200

$ -

1$ - 1
$ •

TOTAL EE 545,454 CE 54,545 1 $ 599.999

Method A-Total program cost/Total cost for
all programs-Cefling rate sel at 10% per

RFP

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0%

Exhibit B-3-Budget (SFY 19)
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROViSiONS

Contractors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows;

1. Compliance with Floral and State L^ws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with appGcabte federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determinatiori and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shaD furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that aU applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shaD be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the p^es
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase; Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate

which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to;
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs:

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor rnitials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ail funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. fMalntenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
property reflect aD such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (Including aO forms required to determine eligibility for each such redpient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/redpient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs. Activities and Functions, Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain tofinandal compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: in addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the DepartmenL all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10, Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may l>e made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Eitfiibit C - Sp»da( Provisions Contractor Initials
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein ttie covenants and cor>dltions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason wt>atsoever;~

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-albwable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of paymerit hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactoiV by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.
(

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parlies hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other binding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior vwitten approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the ̂ cllity or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
perrriit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply Nvith the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations. ar>d requirements of the Slate Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by*
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and lj^^(]|or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medlcal and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP. requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http:/Avww.o|p.u$doj/about/ocr/pdfs/cenpdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (l^EP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliar>ce with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Chril
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Prognm for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whbtleblower Protections: The
foDowing shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currenUy. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 826 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the worltforce.
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.906 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the ̂ nction(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that spedfies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
perfomiance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

OEFINtTtONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
wth state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: ShaD mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is

entitled "Finandal Management Guiddines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the tenns and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT; For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligibie individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of ail regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Eithibit C • Spedsl Provisions Contractor Initials
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph A of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, ali obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or avaiiatHlity of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or avaiiabiiity of funds affected by
any state or federai tegisiative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
m^ifies the appropriation or availat>ility of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whoie or in part. In no event shaii the
Stale be itable for any payments hereunder in excess of ai^ropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modihcation of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other, source or account into the
Account(s) identified in biock 1.6 of the Generai Provisions. Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph tO of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any lime for any reason, at the sole disaetion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of earty termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for senrices under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, idenUfying the present and future r\eeds of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detaiied
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are Iransitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to three additional years, subject
to the continued availability of funds; satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identiRed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D;41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the follbwing Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sut>-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sut>-contractors) that is a State
may etect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send It to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon^emptoyees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit O - Certificalion regarding Drug Free Contractor Iriitiais
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
Identification numberfs) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the follov^ng actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stale, zip code) O'Sl esch location)

>4mK>.oA S-VfuA, 0 5000

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contra

slpJlb M
PaC> CG o
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identitied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification-.

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS ''

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered);
•Temporary Assistance to Needy FamlBes under Title IV-A
•Ct\ild Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicald Program under Title XIX
'Community Senrices Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best'of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wilt be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor). P

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Memt>er of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordarKe with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shaD certify and disclose accordingly.

this certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed v^en this transac^on
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 510.000 and not more than 5100,000 for
each such failure.

Contra

Date ' ' Name

Title:

Name:

V ceo
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shal submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to fumish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from partidpation In
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.^

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
drcum stances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred." "suspended." "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction." 'participant' 'person." 'primary covered transaction," "prindpal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily exduded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) tiiat should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily exduded
from partidpation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will indude the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective partidpant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily exduded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
dedde the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

^mJ
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that wfiich is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
cosrered transaction knowingly enters into a iower tier covered transaction with a person who is
susperKted. debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineiigible, or

votuntariiy excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary partidpant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its prindpals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, dedared ineligible, or

voluntarily exduded from partidpalion in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to ceitify to any of the above, such

prospective partidpant shall atta^ an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this dause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in aU lower tier covered
transactions and in all soiidtations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Pfc-ai cUvJt
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CERTIRCATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondisciimlnation requirements, which may include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1966 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the deDvery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
reqiires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the JuvenSe Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
senhces or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1661, 1683,1685-66), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Fath-8ased
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain wNstle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or tennination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race,- color, reiigion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding'to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the appBcable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Date

sinjio

CemtraatorMame;

P/e> ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local govemments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contra

iinilU
RiVjlVuT
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCtATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to busiriess associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AQoreaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TrtleXIII.'Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/20U Exhibit I Contraaor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

7^.

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by lav/" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary' shall rrtean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Securitv Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not othenwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonatjiy necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. • Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the tenris set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for svhich K was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtair^ed
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Businc J

3/2014 Exhibit I Contrscior Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity-has exhausted all
remedies.

e. if the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and at>ove those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

[Z) ObliQations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Busirtess Associate shall rxrtify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate t>ecomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becorr^es
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 {!). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associa)e
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, vrfiowill be receiviri^PHI^

3/2014 ExMbil I Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indenv^ification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to rr^eet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an ,
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PH) available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two. (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to tho!
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit 1

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObtiQations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation($) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance wrth 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knovrtedge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from lime to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on t>ehalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be r
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
per5on(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not a^ect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

The State

Signdtujb of Authoriaed Represent^e

/Ij^rcefU J
Name of Authorized Representative 'iiiic «Ji n

drJl^c^trce
lorij

ill
Title of Authorized Representative

Date 1 !

horized miative

Name of Authorized Representative

1- C^-O
Title of Authorized Representative

Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTiFtCATION REGARDiNG THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABiLITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT iFFATAi COMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires pnme awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Inforrnation), the
Department.of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award f'
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, ptus 30 days, in which
the award or avyard amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subavvard and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification;
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined atx>ve to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contra
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organizaCon's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

VNO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Cl«OHMS"1071J
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